
1 

 

 
First Unitarian Church of Portland 

Board of Trustees Meeting - June 4, 2020 - Agenda - Final 
Board (only) Deepening 6:30, Board Meeting - 7 - 9pm - Zoom call – link 

 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

Topic: June Board Meeting 

Time: Jun 4, 2020 07:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87648641257?  

Meeting ID: 876 4864 1257 

Password: 179444 

One tap mobile 

+12532158782,,87648641257# US (Tacoma) 

Dial by your location 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

Meeting ID: 876 4864 1257 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdCp3pLBhs 

 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
 
Board Meeting       Board Roles: 
6:30 Deepening/Check-in      Process Observer: ? 
         Timekeeper:  Brad 
         Words:  Theo 
 
7:00 Convene 
 Opening Words - Theo 
 Determine Quorum 
 Introduce New Board Members 
 Process Observer Review  
 Review Agenda 
 Review & Approve previous meeting’s minutes 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87648641257
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdCp3pLBhs


2 

 

7:10 Congregant Comment Period 
 
 Updates 
 
7:20 ET Update 
  
 NOTE: Committee Updates - reports attached.  
  
 NOTE: Dates to calendar -  
 June 9 - Google Docs training for board, 7pm 
 July 2 (?) - Presentation by RE Development TF 
 Summer - mini-retreat? 
 August - Assessment of Ministry 
 Aug 28/29 - Board Retreat 
  
 Consent Agenda 
8:00 Approve new board members, Officers, Committee Heads, Foundation Bd Reps for   
 2020/21 (see list)  
 Approve deferring full audit for one year and have a review next year instead (write-up)  
  
 ~~~Closed Session~~~ 
8:05 Discuss Assumptions for next church year 
8:40 Thank you to retiring board members 
 
 
 
Meeting Wrap-up 
 
8:55 Communications Check and Process Observations 
 Closing Words - Theo 
9:00 Adjourn  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



3 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

Our Mission: 

The mission of First Unitarian Portland is to create a welcoming community of diverse individuals; to promote love, 

reason and freedom in religion; to foster lifelong spiritual growth; and to act for social justice. 

Our Vision: 

First Unitarian Portland is a beacon of hope for us and for our community, a spiritual center in the heart of our city that 

helps each of us to find our moral compass, calling and challenging us to build the beloved community with an ever 

deepening sense of spirit, diversity and inclusion. 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
Goals for First Unitarian Church 
 
Five Year Church Goals are created in collaboration with the congregation and Executive Team and adopted by 
the Board.  They reflect the mission and vision of our church. Church goals are primarily carried out by the 
Executive Team and staff, collaborating with the Board. 
 
Board 1-3 Year Goals are created by the Board and Executive Team at our yearly Retreat.  Board goals may 
draw from the 5 Year Church goals, yet reflect work within the purview of the Board. 
 
First Unitarian Church Five Year Goals 
At the Board meeting on May 6, 2016, the Board adopted five year goals for the church.  
From 2016-2021, First Unitarian Church of Portland will:  
• Focus on collaborative governance, revising policies for clarity and brevity and creating linkages between the 
Congregation, the Board, and the Executive Team.  
• Increase church funding through enhanced giving, including goal to reduce or retire the Buchan Building 
mortgage.  
• Make a cultural transition from program-focused church to mission-driven church, with priority to building 
beloved community between generations.  
• Develop a long-term plan for development and sustainability of church campus given changing dynamics of 
West End and downtown Portland. 
 

Board Goals for 2019/20 

Recognize that adopted goals are 1-3 year goals. (Going forward, add a new goal when an old one is retired.)  

1. Continued to work on issues of Power, Privilege and White Supremacy Culture by 

a. Educating ourselves on the issues. 
b. Examining the ways in which Power, Privilege and White Supremacy Culture affect our Church, including 
our Board work. 
c. Taking steps to improve our practices. 
 



4 

 

2. Support Executive Team to have an Annual Fund Drive and other income streams that meet the church's 
budgeted expenses by the 2020-2021 church year 
 
3. Governance committee to review and possibly recommend changes to the bylaws as they relate to size of 
Board, and definition of pledging member in by-laws and policies. 
 
4. Ensure that current possibilities for development on the current campus receive thoughtful consideration 
and appropriate Board review. 
 
5. Continue a Senior Minister Transition Team to educate the Board, create a timeline, and a congregation 
education plan. 
 
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
 
New board members: 
Caitlynn Hill 
Adam House 
Marilyn Mays 
Alan Comnes (returning for a second term) 
 
Officers: 
Mindy Clark, Moderator 
Barbara Morrison, 1st Vice Moderator 
Cindy Cumfer, 2d Vice Moderator 
Leila Wrathall, Treasurer 
Ryan Deibert, Secretary 
 
Committee Heads: 
Governance - Cindy Cumfer 
Finance - Leila Wrathall 
Communications - Barbara Morrison 
Board Liberation Team - Theo Harper



5 

 

First Unitarian Church Portland Oregon 

Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – FINAL 
May 7, 2020 

 

 
Board Members present: Mindy Clark, Alan Comnes, Cindy Cumfer, Ryan Deibert, Theo Harper, Kathy 
Ludlow, Barbara Morrison, Andy Parker, Randy Russell, Brad Taylor, Andy Wilson, Leila Wrathall 

Ministers and staff present:  Rev. Bill Sinkford, Rev. Tom Disrud, Kathryn Estey 

Timekeeper: Theo Harper 

Assistant note taker: Dotti Chidester 

Process Observer: Brad Taylor  

Congregants present: Jean Omelchuck 

The board meeting convened at 7:00 PM. 

Opening words:  Leila read a poem by Pablo Neruda, “Keeping Quiet.” 

Kathy determined there was a quorum. 

Review agenda:  

Agenda was reviewed. 

Review and Approve previous meeting’s minutes:  
Theo Harper moved and Cindy Cumfer seconded a motion to approve the minutes. The motion carried with a 

unanimous vote. 

Congregant Comment:   
None. 

Dates to calendar 

 May 14 – Ballots due to office 

 May 31 – Annual State of Church – cancelled for this year 

 August 28/29 – Board Retreat 

ET updates 

 We are eight weeks into the COVID-19 restrictions and our new way of worship/church activities. 

 The youth service had almost 900 devices signed on, which translates to 1,300-1,400 viewers. There was a 
wide geographic representation – Europe, Africa, Asia, and most US states. 

 The most recent newcomer class had three out-of-state participants. They were from Hawaii, Alaska, and 
Minnesota. 

 Ministry is looking at more partnering with other churches for worship. The first partner will be 
Rochester, NY on May 17. The service will include a dialog between Bill and their minister and musical 
offerings from both churches. 

 Preparing for worship service is taking much more time than it did when we met in the sanctuary. 



6 

 

 We have begun our second round of calls to all members of the congregation to maintain ties and check 
in on needs for support. 

 We have received some very generous gifts. ET is watching our income streams closely. The trend is 
positive. The strength of our worship services is a key factor. 

 The Congregant Emergency Fund is in better shape than it has been for many years following the plate 
donations received in March. 

 Sunday plate donations continue to be strong. 

 We are partnering with other organizations. Outside In, which is a long-time partner, is using Buchan 
reception for bulk food drops and preparing food boxes for delivery to youth. Staff is helping with the 
work. 

 ET/Ministry have begun planning for fall. The working assumption is that we will continue virtual worship 
at least through the summer. There are many questions that need to be addressed: 
 What will the new normal look like? It won’t be the same as the old normal. 
 What does RE look like going forward? 
 What will happen with the choirs? 
 How will we do the annual fund drive? 

 We need to be making some very fundamental assumptions about the coming church year so that 
ministry and ET can plan. Though planning is the purview of ministry and ET, Bill asked if the board, or a 
subset of the board, wanted to participate in examining the assumptions that will underly planning for 
next year. The board agreed that this would be a good collaboration. Bill, Tom, Kathy, and Mindy will start 
the discussion of what this might look like at the next moderator meeting. 

 A question was asked about what ET learned from Portland PD about the break ins. Portland PD reports 
that there is more criminal activity in general in the downtown now that there are fewer people o doing 
things in downtown. 

 A question was asked about the faulty sprinkler head that caused the latest flood. We have sent it to a lab 
and have not yet received their report. 

 340 ballots have been received so far. Counting will be done on 5/18 or 5/19. 

Committee Reports are included in the board packet and included here by reference. 

Consent Agenda: 

 Approve sending an acknowledgement to the Search Committee thanking them for their time and 
dedication and commending the excellent forum held on April 26.  
Ryan Deibert moved and Cincy Cumfer seconded a motion to approve.  The motion carried with a 

unanimous vote. Kathy will draft a letter. 

Action Items: 

 Discuss fundraising idea to offset some of the revenue lost from canceling the auction. 
 Mindy Clark and Dev Dion shared their plan to donate the amount of money they spent on the 

auction last year to help offset the real estate development expenses that have been incurred. 
They asked that all board members consider joining them in donating what they would have spent 
on the auction. Dev will be asking members of the Foundation board to do the same. The board 
was very positive about this idea. Kathy shared that the Alliance will be contributing its sponsorship 
donation and that members of Alliance leadership have also be invited to join the board and 
Foundation board in contributing. 

 



7 

 

Communication Check:   

 Nothing to note. 

Process Observations:  
 The Zoom meeting format continues to contribute our operating in some ambiguity. It is difficult to see 

facial expressions and body language.  
 We are doing more to ensure that there is inclusion and community. 
 We had realistic timelines and acknowledged that there are things we can’t control. 

Closed session 
At 8:15 the board went into closed session to discuss its self-evaluation. 

Closing Words: Leila read a quote by George McDonald on trust. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:00 pm.  

Minutes respectfully submitted: Mindy Clark, board secretary



8 

 

FIRST UNITARIAN CHURCH OF PORTLAND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Communications Committee Meeting Minutes 
May 12, 2020 7:00-8:30  Zoom Room 

 
The meeting convened via Zoom.    
Present:  Barbara Morrison, Randy Russell, Kathy Ludlow, Theo Harper, Mindy Clark, Alan Comnes, Brad Taylor 
The April meeting minutes were approved as written. 
 
The May Moderator Letter was discussed. Topics to be addressed:  results of church ballot, members leaving, 
new members beginning, virtual service rest of the year, success of Ministerial Search Committee forum on 
April 19th. 
 
There was discussion of a possible mini-retreat for further discussions of Board Survey subjects: Vision, White 
Supremacy Culture, AFD 
 
How to honor Tom in virtual mode? Barbara will buy a cook book/card. Someone will do a screen shot or video 
of our Board Meeting on June 4th. Randy will find something appropriate to read. Members will sign on early. 
Barbara will check with Kathryn and Bill to see if there is time for this during the June 7th service.  Mindy will 
set up Zoom time. 
 
Randy spoke of updating websites. GovCom is current. Leila will confer with Andy about the Financial 
Committee website. 
 
Alan will take on the Google Docs dilemma. What categories do we want, can we get a file that is confidential? 
All those who are interested, especially our new members, can attend a special Zoom meeting on this topic, 
June 9th 7-8:30pm. Mindy will set up the meeting. 
 
Discussion regarding information for new members. Brad suggested a check off list for new members; such as 
attending a GovCom meeting, meeting office staff, etc.  
  
Kathy stated that the MSC would contact us if they needed help setting up a website. 
This was Kathy’s last ComCom meeting as she will be leaving the Board next month. 
It definitely won’t be the same without her. Thanks so much Kathy for all your years of service. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Barbara Morrison 
 









9 

 

 

 



10 

 



11 

 



12 

 



13 

 



14 

 



 

 15 

First Unitarian Church 
Finance Committee Minutes  

May 26, 2020 
Attending: 

Committee Members:  Leila Wrathall, Kathy Ludlow, Andy Wilson 

Non-Voting Board Members, Committee Members and Congregants:   Ed McClaran, Stan Jewett, Jo Ann Foor, 

Mindy Clark, Linda Craig, Alan Comnes 

Staff:  Kathryn Estey, Zaida Cooper, Rev. Bill 

 
Call to Order:  5:00 pm 
Reading:   Andy provided a reading. 
Date and Time for Next Regular Meeting: June 23, 2020; 5:00 – 6:30 PM (tentative) 
 

Announcements and Reports:   

Leila reviewed Agenda.   

Motions/Approval:  

M/S/C: Approve April Minutes, as amended (see attached page 1, amendments in italic). 

April 30, 2020 Financial Review - Discussion 

April - 2020  YTD  Budget YTD* 

Operating Income 
 $             1,840,550 
 

$       1,940,100  

Operating Costs  $             1,827,074 $       1,834,168 

Reserve Deposits  $                  34,722 $            38,580 

Investment  $                       737 -- 

Reimbursable Exps   $                    2,320 -- 

Net Cash Effect 
 $                 (18,189) 
 

 $           67,352 
 

Net Cash Effect with 
PPP 

$                  151,520  

*Budget YTD is an estimate of amount of income received and expenditures that are projected for this point in 

time. The amount varies by month, e.g. pledge income is consistently lower in summer. 

Discussion: April Financial Report: April financial report is mixed. Pledges for the period from January through 

April are above last year, but April pledges are about $34,000 below March’s. The church received a loan of 

$275,421 from the Payroll Protection Program which Zaida projects they should be able to spend by mid-June. 

Staff have been guaranteed that they will be paid through the end loan period. (Note: Rev. Bill and Kathryn 

previously shared that they project the church will qualify for loan forgiveness under this program.)  

Sunday service donations raised over $9,000 for Bienestar and in March over $18,000 for the Church’s 

Emergency Fund (Note: all of collection in March went to Emergency Fund). The church met with NW 



 

 16 

Academy recently. They will be following Portland Public Schools’ decision about school in the fall. It is 

possible that they will need the Buchan basement to achieve social distancing. NW Academy seems to be 

willing to pay for costs of extra cleaning, etc. related to Covid-19. No change in paying monthly lease unless 

the church hears differently. The church paid Kennedy Restoration for the work it did on the 2nd Buchan 

sprinkler leak. 

Net Cash effect is negative this month. Post meeting note, Annual reserve transfer was not made in April, will 

be transferred in May.  The ET will be monitoring the pledge and other income. 

Updates – Kathryn and Rev. Bill 

Church Updates & Church Year 2020-2021: Sunday attendance thus far is holding steady at over 750 devices. 

This doesn’t tell us how many people are at each device. Per recent email, the church services will be online 

next year, this could change if miracle occurs or vaccine is available.   

Outside In will continue to use the Buchan reception through mid-August for its Food Bank. Rest of Social 

Justice work is still strong. There will be a major SJ program online in conjunction with the Voting Program. 

This will include training on how to engage people with different views.  

The program staff will be doing some work on intentional programing especially at the end of June. One 

thought is to have a service for families and children prior to the regular Sunday church service. Figuring out 

how to reach out online to children, especially the kindergarteners is a challenge. Also considering possible 

post-Sunday service Zoom coffee hour. YRUU is one of two youth learning community groups that has 

connected very successfully using technology. Kerry Heinze has become a pro at helping congregants connect 

with technology.    

Two Sunday services in June will feature General Assembly programs, one of which will be the Service of the 

Living Tradition. 

Online AFD – Discussion: 

 Staff will start AFD planning this week. 

 Considering starting early in advance of election. 

 Not sure how AFD will be affected by Covid-19 or the challenges that exist, they can come up with 

educated guesses. 

o Rev. Bill thinks we are in midst of economic cycle that could be as deep as 1930’s 

o Lucky that many congregants have secure income 

 Rental income will be impacted. 

o Could we shut down part of campus, possibility save money e.g. utilities. With NW Academy 

meeting in person, utility savings won’t be as big & closing buildings not realistic. Small utilities 

savings currently. 

 Can decrease parking costs next year with online services. 

 Treat AFD like mini-capital campaign, have early silent portion talking to higher donors directly and those 

with ability to increase pledges. 

 Question – how do we replicate excitement of celebration Sunday & ritual of putting pledge envelope in 

basket? 

 Do Covid-19 boost, like OPB & others, and ask donors to give more if possible. 



 

 17 

 Concern about donor fatigue and noisy competitive environment with everyone asking for money. 

o How do we create a message that cuts through the noise? 

o Scholarship program for people unable to give. 

o Want to ensure everyone’s dignity is preserved.  

o Church isn’t here just for those with ability to give. 

 Get video clips or testimonials from early givers to show during services. 

 Subset of givers will want to know about changes in budget to address Covid-19. 

 Greater approach to looking at how people are connected to church activities, e.g. though Wellspring, SJ 

groups, RE, choir 

o Use these connections to help approach congregants for AFD 

o Point that some people in e.g. SJ who are leaders feel connected to the activity not to the church. 

 Hold music and worship services online, not necessarily easy task. 

 Could have small ticker tape on bottom of screen during service that allows people to make comments 

during AFD. 

Jo Ann Foor agreed to do open and closing reading next meeting. 

Andy read closing words. 

Open congregant portion of meeting ended 6:06 pm. 

Board only discussion with Rev. Bill and Kathryn about projections for next year. 

Meeting adjourned 6:35 pm 

 

First Unitarian Church 

Finance Committee Minutes  
April 28, 2020 

Attending: 

Committee Members:  Leila Wrathall, Kathy Ludlow, Andy Wilson 

Non-Voting Board Members, Committee Members and Congregants:   Barbara Morrison, Ed McClaran, Stan 

Jewett, Jo Ann Foor, Mindy Clark, Linda Craig 

Staff:  Kathryn Estey, Zaida Cooper 

 
Call to Order:  5:00 pm 
Reading:   Kathy provided a reading. 
Date and Time for Next Regular Meeting: May 26, 2020; 5:00 – 6:30 PM 
Finance & Budget Quarterly Forums: May 3, 2020, 11:45 am, combined with Rev Sinkford Q&A 

Announcements and Reports:   

Leila reviewed Agenda.   



 

 18 

Motions/Approval:  

M/S/C: Approve February 25 Minutes, as amended, Stan read closing reading not Linda; March 17, March 24 

as amended with note about Chesney Fund name change to Chesney-Deale.   

March 31, 2020 Financial Review - Discussion 

March-2020  YTD  Budget YTD* 

Operating Income 
 $             1,730,567 
 

$       1,735,010 

Operating Costs  $             1,651,220 $       1,653,573 

Reserve Deposits  $                  34,722 $            34,722 

Investment  $                       530 -- 

Reimbursable Exps   $                    2,320 -- 

Net Cash Effect 
 $                  47,475 
 

 $           46,715 
 

*Budget YTD is an estimate of amount of income received and expenditures that are projected for this point in 

time. The amount varies by month, e.g. pledge income is consistently lower in summer. 

Discussion: March Financial Report: March financial report is better than February’s. Pledges are down, but 

less so than in February report. Kathryn said that the ET will be looking at data closely for impacts of corona 

virus. Too soon to know full impact. As data becomes available they will be restating Budget Quarterly. Only 4 

or 5 pledge units have informed the church they won’t be able to make their pledge commitment due to 

coronavirus. Rentals not unexpectedly are down. Both Outside In and NW Academy are paying their lease 

payments. Haven’t heard anything different from either of them. Other income category includes money 

received from Church Mutual for 2nd sprinkler leak. Kathryn needs to contact Kennedy to find out how much 

the church owes them. They won’t cash this check until they know what the expenses are and whether Church 

Mutual payment fully covers them. Net Cash effect is still positive, although this includes the Church Mutual 

check of about $28,000. 

Updates – Kathryn  

 

 


